OFFICE CF TCE BCISIT COUfISSIOB

COLOMBIA SOUTH CAROLINA

January 14 1946

To the General Asaenhly:

Durin, the political campaign of 1946 for nomination of a Democratic
candidate for Convcissior.er of a, riculture, frequent criticisms were voiced
concerning the management ari operation of a seed grading laboratory in the a-.ie
Hampton Office Building, by the Commissioner of Agriculture. As soon as the
primaries were over, the Budget Coramission directed the State auditor to audit
the records of the Seed Grading Laboratory, and to report same, together with all
pertinent facts in connection with its operation, to the Commission.

The audit was duly performed and, upon receipt of the report, a date
was fixed and publi&ried for an oj*n hearing on tte matter by the Budget Commission.
This hearing was conducted on October 2, 1946 in the Finance Committee Room of the
Senate, and was open to the press and the public.

At the hearing, statements and testimony were submitted by the following
persons.

Mr. Chorine Sprott, Secretary and Treasurer of the Seed Grading
Laboratory.

Mr. J. Roy Jones, Commissioner of Agriculture.

Mr. R. T. Jourhtie, Supervisor of Cotton Seen Grading for the
U. S. Departrrnt ol Agriculture.

Ur. E. |. Lawton, Jresident and Treasurer of the Hartsville
on am.

Mr. D. M Lipscomb, secretary of the b. C. Cottonseed Crusliers
Association.
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No other testimony was offered.
From the evidence submitted, the conclusions of the Budget Commission
are as follows:
1. That the seed grading laboratory was or; sniped at the request,
and operated under the supervision, of the Inited States Department of agriculture.
2. The laboratory was located in the .»ade Hampton Office Building, in
space used by the South Carolina jepart.tnt of .-griculture, and was operated
alto, ether as » private enterprise, a situation which, under ordinary circumstances,
should not be per .itted but which, under the existing circumst\nces, appears
largely justifiable, because,
(a) The wont was considered of extreme importance to the
cotton growers of the state in connection with, the enforcement
of war measures under the Federal prc_ram, and
(b) No other adequate facilities existed in the state for the
perlonaar.ee of the work, and laboratories outside oi the state

were unable to handle it, «nd

(c) Federal Regulations prohibited the performance of the
work by a state owned or controlled laboratory.

3. That the operation of the Seed 'ralir. Laboratory did not interfere
with the required *ork of the State Department of agriculture.

4. That, as a rntter of policy, the laboratory should be removed itom
state property, but tt- t since no other adequate facilities have been, or are
presently, available, the present arrangement be permitted to continue for the
remainder, but no lon/er than the end, of this fiscal year.

5. That there are no actionable cireurstances in connection with the
operation of the laboratory, within the province of the Budget Commission, but that
its duty lies in fully reporting the result of its investigation to the General

Assembly.
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perlonaar.ee

A stenographic record of the statements snd testimony presented at the
hearin. of October 2, 1946, together with the report of the State Auditor, is

attached hereto.

Respectfully submitted,
THE BobDOLT OOmsOIQK

Governor

Chairman Finance Committee

Chairman aia; s and Means Comnittee
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Uurlr< the oaep&ii;n for nomination of State Coasissioner of
Agriculture, frequent charges were made that the South Carolina Seed
Orading Laboratory, conducted in the Laboratories of the 3t&te Department
of Agriculture, had been improperly aanagei. These chargee gained con-
siderable publicity and were the subject of seme coavaent throughout the
State, both In the press and by the public 4enerally. Takir™ eor.niaonce
of this eituatior, the State Budget Cosedsalon, at its first meeting after
the Primaries, directed the State Auditor to conduct an audit of the
operation of the South Carolina aeed Grading Laboratory, and to report

same to the Commission as soon as the work had been completed*

In view of the oonte.-tion by ti e operators of the Seed Grading
Laboratory that its functions and operations were ir no way coineoted with
the Jtfcte JeparUmnt of Agriculture or tike State Gorerr.;asnt, it w«s con-
sidered necessary for the State Auditor to obtain permission to inspect the
records of tim Laboratory for the 4*rpoee of making tt* audit* Trie following

letter was therefore addressed to hr. Chorine Sprott, Secretary and Treasurers



_2-

LETTMdItAD STATh ALLXK&
August 22, 1946

2r. Chovine bprott, Sac. 4 Treas.
South Caroline Saad Grading Laboratory
Columbia, South Carolina

dear Ur. oprotti

The Jtate bud. at Cooekiasiart has instructed a* to audit the
records of tha Saad Grading Laboratory which has bear, operated in
the offices and laboratories of tha State GeparvVmnt od JUriculture
for t<« past few years. It is understar*din€ that there is a
Auoatiof as to whether or not the functions and business of the
Seed dradirg Laborator are conacted in any way with tha State

Government.

It is, therefore, requested thnt our office be Liven access
to the record/. of the Laborat ry lor tha purpose of asking thia
audit according to the directions of the Budget Commission*

Very truly yours,

/el J. t. .tATH
State Auditor

In reply the following was received!

Ikttuuvw sovn ¢ bgliu slid gl xmg

August 24, 1946

Mr. J. I. Smith, State Auditor
aade harpton Office Building
Coluahia, South Corclint

Dear Ur. fititm

This will acknowled a your letter of August 22, in re audit
ol the records ol the South Carollie Seed Grading Laboratory.

1 will be f.lod to jive you acoe.-ks to oil records of the
Laboratory. 1 rote that you state tnare is a .uestior as to
whether or not the functions and business of tie bead Urading
Laboratory are connected in any wy with the St«.te :over wi t.
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Jr. J. . Saith (cart’d) Au ust 24, 7946

The only oonneetien with the State SsvemsMnt is thw rwnt which
we paid thw Sinking F nd 3aaai??ior., but J wiU be very glad to
have you go over trees records which will conclusively establish
this fact. Tot car count or. me to give yot any assistance in this
manner possible ard lease do not hesitate to call on as.
Tours eery truly,
[/ SlfWlia iFROTT
Secretary 4 Treasurer
Access having thus beer, gained to the records of the Laboratory, the audit
was be.fun Iswiediately and report ol seas is herewith submittad to your

honorable Body.

It should be pointed out that the Laboratory has beer operated
alto ether as s privets enterprise as far aa its finance® are concerned.
There is no Steve Law requiring that this particular work be performed by
the State Department of agriculture, and therefore no authority for the
charging of fees in connection ttarewith. In conformity with this contention
by its operators, no reoorda of the Laboratory have ever beer subedited lor
audit to the State Auditor, nor has any infsnsstice as to the existence of
tbs Laboratory, or the manner of its operation, ever been imparted to the

State Auditor, or the Budget Commissi ru

It is believed that the history and pur ose of the Laboratory will
best be explained bv the following letter wifrlch was written by Mr. Jones,
Commissioner of Agriculture, to Lke Secretary of the State Sinking Fund

CoasinBior or June 24, 19u3t
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UTT, UU 10 Cf THR STATNl DETA/.TUSIr uF 10JUCUTOfc
dure 28, 1943

Honorstie jsu B. 1?<, Secretary
South Carolina Si kir< Fund Ca.wisain
#ads hnxpton Gffioe building

Columbia, South Carolina

De.-r Ir. Kings

In 1942 the United State* Jovernfssnt by executive order took
over the eitire cotton seed crop of the d uth and .node contract*
with ths oil Mils to crush these seed far thee end dispose of the
jroduct* under the supervision of the doaeoditj Credit Car oration*
h sustaining price of #30 * ton was flaced on seed of rssdiua grade,
wich was established a* a standard, with re.niuaa for those seed
ar?alysin_g adbove the standard and deductions for seed analysis below
the sta.iard.

fis .ra.ii, g ro ra« w.s under t-.e ei pervislon of Jr. J. J. &xloy,
In Char, e, 'uradity and srkatin™ Cott n oeed and Products, Aric.ltural
Marketing Adudnlstrstl®n, .ashiigtor, J.C. Jr. aloy called on <& to
cooperate with «in by taring over the seed |r«dir.g in thia St’te slice
there was no other laboratory ir. the State midi would handle t.is
work. The 1 th Carol!? a Jepart-wnt of rieuiturs L;borator; was
rot equipped to handle tils Class of work but it seeusd tu be an
ia*ortant part of the war effort and | requested the C”rth”er.t Fund
Coaoloslcr. to tr.rwfer funds from the oontinftent fund for thia , urpose.
Til* reiart was denied and it aeeaei for tho tiiaa that ro arrangenvent
could be ruade for thia important operation.

Representative of tne oil Mils in the State, however, ot to ether
and agreed to loan necessary equipment to u» and au ort t is se«d
reding operation financially because it was of vital iiu$>ortjnce that
tula work be oarried on.

This e uipcwnt was set u wherever space could be found aoieng t:S
pieces of equipment of ths Jepart -ant of ™lculture laboratory or. the
sixth floor of ths ade i*ae tor. office Buildir « The volu e of seed
graded was far roars tbar. | anticipated, un account of tils i arge
volutas and the fact that the oil sills are paying lor thia seed grading
| do rot feel like continuing it for snot «r year without authority
frost you to use the specs in tbs .ale fiaapton office Building required
for tils worx and without gewpensation for it. it is to ba remetibered
that this is vital teai'Orary war work and at tris uiiae | ncA definitely
inf-mied as to whether or rot the gova--writ will cantinas t:ls pro-.raA
t is year but I have every reason to believe that they villa 1 believe
that a reasonable amount for you to char e for ths sprce used for this



*n. 5a;a 8. fcing (c nt’d) June 2fi, 1943

work w uld be $600 par year. | a* sure that no on© connected
wi”h this pro*r*ja would here any objection to payi < that aich
but 1 do t ink that out* t; Uat would be cxeesive.

| trust that you cur. .resent this setter to the -i.-iking
Fund Cowisrirti at the next Meeting end that they will aiake a
defirite .leoieior 1 mellately. T ie is iaportAnt because the
new crop of cottor. seed will soon be cooing in and 1 may be c.lled
on any day by the iederal Goverrent se to whether or not I will
ecrtirue k& c0° erotica with the* in tile work trie season.

eapectfully y. ura,

lal J. Hoy J' neo, )
Conulooio er of Arieulture

JiStl

Copies tot

Hon. OlIr. D. Jo naton, 3overror

Hot. John Oaniel, Attorney Oeneral
Hon. S» 3. Rhodes, Coaptrollex General
Mon. Jeff B. Bates, 3ta e Treasurer
Hot . Sde'ar A Brown, Bar?-well, 3. G
hoi.. J. korrieon Tutei, -atUi, »x G

Replies by the Secretary of the 5i king Fund 3coal ion to t ie letter wore

at followst

UTT-iH. uv> 01 TKB SINKIJC FE\D OEiiOkIkN
Jure 28, .943

honor tie J. hoy Jones
Cooeilssloncr of Agriculture
Go.unijia, South Carolina

Dear dr. Jones»

I hare yours of the 2.th Inaland with reference to the grading
of cotton seel in thia Stat< unaer the lover:* sent Gonaerwation Fregraa
and in tris counectior. you desire an undei standing with the Sinking
Fund Coaolsalon for a continuation of the | reaeflt apace now used in
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Honorable J. hoy Jones (c nt’d) June 2P, 1%)

your laboratory for thia purpose* He advised it s all ba tay
pleeaure to bring thia catter to the attention ol the dinxirig
Fund CoMnlaaior at ita next naating and it ia entii aly possihle
that | alall request that you acco”any «e for the purpose of
discussing the natter before these gentleman.

*ith every t.ood wish, | an
Very truly yours,

[o] SA>a. MAQ
Secretary
Sfikttj
Lrcl.
Copies tot

Ron* Olir. D. Johnston, Governor

liar.. Jeff & b*tcs, State freesurer
Her.. Join . Jar.iel, Attorney renerul
Hon. 1. C. Rhodes, Comptroller General
Hot, 'd**r * Hr<* damsel!, 3. C.
Ron. J. lorriaor. Tutan, Fatill, 3. C.

LETT WIAD Cf TKI. SLUG FoXD COJtL&ICK
July 1, 1%3

Eorcrhle J. Roy Jones
Comulssinner of Agriculture
Coiuobia, South Caroline

Ueur ilr. Janeat

lurt/«er refersroe la «aia to your letter of Juns 28th in whioh
you requested authority from tne utato Sinking lund Cotarlasion to use
apace on Ute sixth floor of the ™ade Heapton Office Building for grading
of cotton seed under tbs United States iknren.Mnt Cotservatiun rro.;rssu

The Coutflsftion conal dors t:is work lighly im,ortar.t and therefore
at its aeetiiib or. June 30 approved your request. The Commission also
ap roved a rental «h&Tf< of per anauk for the space used*

Tours very truly,

/V dAM B. KUO
Secretary
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It should be roted that the letter of the Coea.iaaloner ol
Agriculture, juoted above, was written on Stationer; of the State Depart-
ment of Vgrlculture and signed by Ur. Joree, as "Comaleel ner of a rioulture
Nothing ir. hie letter could have indicated to the swobare of the Sinxir<
Fund doande”™ion that the work wee to be performed other than by the State
Jep*rt ent. The atnteu.ent in hie letter that the Budget CoaAission had
been requested to supply funds for the operatic**. (a request of w ioh the
Bud «t Coanission hue no record) would lead to the belief that it was
contemplated that the Laborator; be operated in connection with the work
of the State Depart ent. The pa. amd. of rent for neceseury space would
ot intiote private operation of the Laboratory, si/osa the Federal Govern-
awvnt now pays rent for space in State buildings ir. at least are other State
Departiaen®, (anc formerly more than one) where cooperative worn is performed.
It itay also be pointed out that, although the Cowuiielorisr’8 letter is dated

June 2% 1943, the work of the Laboratory was *eti ally be,un in 3epteuber, 1942.

as Stated above, the fludtet C.awd.eaion has no record of the matter
ever being brought to its attention, and the nly reference to the subject
in the Minutes of the Sintting Fund Coeniision is as followei

(Ixoerrt from einui.es of meeting of Sinking Fund Comission
0 June 30, 1943))

"Ths Secretary sub ittad request of the Department of
Arioulture lor a contiruancs of sprice ow used by
them for se«4 gradinr purposes. The r ueet was granted.9

The work of the Laboratory was be ?un In September, 1942. Fractioally

all of the rr* ting was done i tl» cotton harvesti»g season, so that the


einui.es

Labo story actually operated only bout four x xiths of eieh year. .avsme
wee derived from a fee which was Obargod for the grading of each s<wj>le
-.ubmittad. Thio fee was $2.25 per sample during the I*4x aeeeur., and
*2.75 per a pie during the 1*44, and 1*45 seasons. Total oparati g
revenues for the four seasons am unte.i to *8?,bli>.15» OXtrie a.iount
$8,112.25 waa remitted by oheok to the Treasurer of the United States
"for supervl.u&"e The remibg »?V,503.70 was available for operation of

the laboratory.

Astatement of receipts end dicbureeraents ior t:e .our years
of the laboratory*a oparati r ie resented on pa™e 1- of t/.io report.
A detailed statement of the personal service item is curried on pages 15
to 17 « Personal service payments were made to sixty m-iloyeee of the
Departraent of Agriculture, and to two people who have i.ot been employed
in the Department durin the four year perled. These payments range from
negligible to considerable amounts as shown by the statement referred to.
to record was offeree, and we were udvised that none was hept, to bjjOVthe

time d voted to this war* by ec. loyee* of the Department of . riculture.

jayments to J. iuoy donee amount to $£93D2«yj, fro- which Federal
income Tax deauctiorm were made and reoitueu amounting to *19d6D»50» In
oorossoti; with these peasants to *r. donee, the follow rg explanation is

offered by tne "ecrutary and Treasurer of the Labor., -aryl
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UTT Mf ADCT TKE SOUTH 3 ttU M Saw) GIUDI 0 UBOUTOKT
u«ptauber 5, 1946

r. J. . 5.dtt, State ‘.uditor
«ade Keapton Office Building
Coiucfcia, South Carolina

dear r. Scithi

tolerance la male to the audit of tha Saad ir ding Lsborr.tory
boole with special refarance to tha item *4. toy Jcr.ee, odes™
I hare dircussad thia itac with you in person, but for tha rcocrds
1 wo Id like tc oake tha following statement:

Sfxwtiua after tha bead Gr.iing Laboratory ba an operations,
*r. Jones .alt that a reserve should be btt.lt up to indeusilfy tha
Laboratory and him parsorally, against &y centin ancles or liabilities
which -JL,ht arf.ee. Ue suggested that tha Saad Grading Laboratory *ike
regular rerehasee of bonis for this urpoee.

Sinee tne Seed Grading Laboratory was paying out Tactically
everything taxer, in for equipment, sup lies and personal services,
the ex”ensao were prtotically the cjus as the revenue. Therefore,
it was asking no money ar.d not subject to tax. |If the Seed Grading
Laboratory had purehasad bonds, thia would, of course, change the
tax stilus, and | suggested to r. Jcr.es tr.a ho slow as to pey
him ir. artunis that ha felt would indemnify him and trie toed Grading
Laboratory, Just as if it were for personal services, ana that to
could wurehase the bords «nd we (the toed Grading Laboratory) would
old t. omto take care of any eofttir ancles wioh aay nnoe.

This was do”e and er. Jonee deposited with tha Seed >radlr®
Laboratory cou.xx. be;4s ii. an a-nount wcefc *e agreed had a valuation
of J7,CO0.00. 3ueh an arrangement could be made with Ir. Jonas s.nce
no state funds wlw»tever were involved.

rle<se do rot hesitate to call on ne for any luretor assistance
| can 'ive you.

Tours very truly,

Is/ OR7L S 3FHLTT
beer tary 4 Treasurer

The cords referred to in the above letter are told by the book-

keeper of the Laboratory, and consist of six, ore thousand dollar, State
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of North Carol nu, bonds, the present market value of which would

probably approach 37,GGO*|C as stated Ix. the letter™*

The equi<s»nt used Is loc”t d in the Uboratory of the jepart-
swnt of Agriculture. dose of the pieces are oulXy end the apace occupied
is considerable, although a minor portion of the depart cnt’s entire
laboratory space. The pises*, of e jui «aent are generally auuoped, or
jurkal, to 1.dicave ownership by the louth Gar *1l/a “esd Grading Laboratory*
The e is to evidence that any of the equipment or supplies wort paid for
fras. the a, ropriatoG funds of the Jtate Dopartaant, although aany of the

invoices for amae were made to the S apartment of Agriculture*

Co.umbia, South Caroline
September 10, "»b*
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Silanes - aptaA ar 25 1942 00
JRfILII

J oy «qtms - dvxnoe 1 Q0C 00
f'aaa - Cottor, oad >adIn’ 87 158 65
F<w« - ~qy Man trading 457 50

Total aaalpta S3 616 15

8? 616 15
cream1l -orvloa 59 352 25
V5 ov rm<xnt - >un«rriaory !e«®©s 8 11z 25
Traval 238 34
.epalrs 145 78
Offie* -upplies 8-4 02
Foal >uppliaa 737 97
3ha»lcal Japp’U i 4 913 &=
ether .Aipp'laa 18?7 10
O fflee rxjui nant 102 69
Jhanlo™d "qoiroent 5 3% 82
.loanees - Chadat 90 00
ant - linking un' Coni vaion 2 40T 00
J Kay Jonaa - Refund of dhr.mce 1 000 00
General x "nsa 46 00
Laeluaair"KL -xpanaa

Caab 80 00
Chorlno prott 110 oc
C K Stenrtsr 190 00
John L :ixon - Haulin ? awplea - . JSgg

Totil laburao anta 84 972 50

Ca«i» *.L*noc ¢ 'u -uat 31 1946 J 643 65
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3«>M«8faw 15 1UZ to -tttMt 31 1946

Arw'eraor. otton 11 o Inc hn-eraor. 831 00
JMiekeye Cottos. ju Co aleiffh 227 75
a<Jkey» -otto 11 Co Cheorl otto 18 50
buckeye otto Oil o August* 3 326 25
Carolina MI 111 Choree 663 50
Caldwell MI o »partanb r r 29 25
A B Cerpenter 275
Coker bedlgreetf eeeri o arteville 108 75
Central 4.1 and iillin- o Clayton r C 16 50
ifeteahurr ertiliaar Co Uteaburg 275

I Carter Gin o 'lieraw 2 75
R F loudity WaMl 8 00
Ibertar Oil Co Iberton Qo 1 026 75
far™»r« otto -11 Co ilaon MC 1 967 75
Premont ‘41 Co rront MC 33 75
Fowler Mr. Co lir.petree 13 75
><enville Cotto Oil 111 Oroonville 1 812 50
>eer Ml villi eed © eeer 1 859 50
Kartoville Oil Pill Co arteville 6 668 00
Foke M1 an Fertiliser Co aeforri 7 C 158 25
International Vegetable M| Co Savannah 538 50
Joyner 1L "a den 5 J0
Muephrey-Cofcer Co *arteville 8 25
ferahaw M1 1ill Kershaw 5 688 25
laneaatar Cotton Oil © ie "CO3twr 3 368 00
Laurinburg Oil Co Laurinburg 1 S 502 5
eeoville M1 ill Leesville 1223 50
axto.-. Oil ertilixer :o o'oxton KC 1 966 OC
Verio* Cotto C41 Co. Arion 3 856 JO
kooreaboro (41 kill koaresboro MC 2 25
srgsn J L A/ & 275
Inot -kix lanufaoturir. 0 Rlnety-oix 1 531 00
Faletto 41 Co ishopville 6 313 75
Jmdleto- Oi Jill lendloton 6C3 0C
.lantore Cotto oil -0 Iwasta 6 160 75
Mtchell (ox lumber Co deltar. 2 75
‘Ina 'enrol MI MI o line Level 265 50
lanterj -otton il and Fort* o. jO<y Ount L C 10 O
rothro J O *iken 5 50
iidibur® J 1 Camrien 2 75
seneen Oil Jill Swieca 33 75
The outher.1 <ottor Oil Co Colusbia 6 015 25
The southern 'otto MI Co Canden 3 226 75
The -authern Cottar; M1 Co Uvideor. » C 2 017 25

Continued)
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4= SO th«rn Gotten Oil
Southern Cotto;. 0 1
- “XMitncrn Cotto Ol

<= j -ut.iorn Cotto QL

<= OOUti-om Cotto -41
Southern Cotto
CSouthern Cotton Ol
Southam Cottoi .1
C3jutlwart. Cotton
<= Southam Cottar
<= Southam Cotto
S'utherti Cotton
Csouthern Cotton Oil
<= 30ut tarn Cotton Cil
<=4 0 aithern Cotto il
< uthorn Cotton Oil
Csouthern Cotto: Oil
+=dw uticir. Cotton Oil
Swift nnf Co Oil 4 U
Swift and Co Oil *LII
Swift and Co Oil MiU
3wift and Co Cil Uil
jcarborot.g: DB
Union Oil y»l
Victor Cotton Oil Co
Viator Ln la
,<ar» Shoala Oil Co

Co
Co

8800880000909 9¢9

-14-

.5 12™ to
(Cantlauad)

Orangehurg
Darlington
<3uittt -r

L urana
Barnettsv la
f jnroe KC
Gibson % C
Cb rlotto S C
Cheatar
Hones | nth
S?alby h C
Savannah o
3pf»rtunburp
tftdoehoro * C
Augusta On
>ee -V la

Fl or*’nee
Conaord KC
Chalbr * C
Jreonwjod
Augist; Qe
Colnat&a
North

Uni n
Gaffney
Kline

eare Crtoala

Total Faaa - Cottar aead Grading

. U3t 31 746



SCHEDULE Of rgtSOHA’ SgOTCI
-ilgtembT 25 1942 to Au”st 31 1946

Sept 25 1942 Sept 1 1943 Sept 1 1944 Sept 1 1945
to 0 to to

t

Aug 31 1943 Aug 31 1?44  uf J»i 1248 AK J2]L246 Total
sAdanw C L 345 00 321 50 687 50 437 50 1771 50
“eBennett J L 333 00 305 62 636 62
+Bodiford \emice 10 00 77 81 31 25 119 06
+Hates Helen 10 00 70 00 31 25 111 25
4Brunson J V 10 00 70 OC 31 25 111 25
+Baker Mrs L If 70 00 31 25 101 25
9 Broom NL 70 00 31 25 101 25
Hannon Roy 25 00 50 00 50 00 125 00
*Clark Parian 312 50 312 50
*Colenan J * 310 00 1 015 50 1 406 30 875 00 3 606 80
*Corley FH 432 50 453 25 737 85 500 00 2 123 60
*Crosland Janie 45 00 101 %0 31 25 177 75
°Crosland E H 10 00 132 50 31 25 173 75
*»Dickert | J 142 75 U2 75
+DuVal ’or?i 10 00 70 00 31 25 111 25
+Dixon J L 179 62 740 00 750 00 1 669 62
*Grubbs 1re 2) 00 75 82 293 75 281 25 670 82
*QOoette RO uo 00 245 00 655 00
+*Qoette »re Ruth F 101 50 93 75 195 25
*Ginn RJ 410 00 480 40 406 25 250 00 1 546 65
Hilbert AH 10 00 132 50 31 25 173 75
*Hodres 1&ss L R 20 00 114 00 31 25 165 25
sHutto HA 338 60 43i 682 75 375 00 1 627 97
¢sMarvin  Wary 9 10 00 82 50 31 25 123 75
**Hijott Harry 10 00 10 00
*Hook h*ry Louise 10 00 70 00 31 25 111 25
xiomsby Julia 345 63 845 63
oHart lIre £ 330 00 393 51 424 14 375 00 1 522 65

(Continued)
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HEARING BEFORE THE BUDGET COJftOSSION ON
THE ORGANIZATION AND OPERATION OF THE
SOUTH CAROLINA SEED GRADING LABORATORY

October 2, 19,46

Members of Budget Commission present: Governor Ransome J. Williams,
State Senator Edgar A. Brown, Representative J. Morrison Tuten and State
Auditor, J. M. Smith.

Meeting called to order by Governor Williams.

‘Governor Williams: 'Gentlemen, we are ready to hear the testimony in
regard to the Seed Grading Laboratory.

Testimony of Mr. Chovine Sprott, Secretary and Treasurer of the
Seed Grading Laboratory:

Mr. Sprott: Gentlemen, | have prepared a statement for your records
asking your consideration on the facts about the Seed Grading Laboratory;
as to what, how and why this Government Project was started and operated
in the Wade Hampton O ffice Building, and how and why | became connected
with it. In this statement, | submit a signed statement, in his own hand
writing, of Dr. G. S. Meloy of Washington, D. C., who was in charge of
the Government Cottonseed Program at the time. Before | read this state-

ment, | ask you to go back to 1942 and ask yourselves what you would have
done in the light of the situation. The Government had taken over the
cotton seed crop as a War emergency, and prices were based on grade. It

was urgent that a laboratory be set up to grade the seed before it deter-
iorated.

Statement by Chovine 3prott, Secretary & Treasurer Seed Grading
Laboratory:

"One day during the early fall of 1942, Mr. J. Roy Jones,
South Caroline Commissioner of *griculture, asked me to come into
his office and meet Dr. G. S. Meloy, of Washington, D. C.

(Dr. Meloy was in charge of the Government Cottonseed Program and
(he, in comoany with Mr. D. M. Lipscomb, Secretary of the South
(Carolina Cottonseed Crushers Association, were here to discuss
(with Mr. Jones a most important part of that program.

( Dr. Meloy explained tnat the United States Government had
(taken over the entire cottonseed crop as a war measure and that
(ceiling prices had been set on cotton seed products and a floor
(price on cotton seed. The government had made contracts with the
(oil mills for processing the seed and they were to settle with the
(ginners and farmers at a price based on grade with premium for
(seed above the basis and deduction for seed below the basis.

Mr. Jones told ne that about a week or ten days before this

a delegation of oil mill men composed of Mr. D. M Lipscomb, Seo-

retary of the South Carolina Cottonseed Crushers Association, Mr.
Edgar Lawton of Hartsville, Mr. W. T. Mikell and Mr. Chris Fitzsiions
of Columbia, called on him to ask his assistance in providing a
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laboratory to do this seed grading.

At that time there was no laboratory in South Carolina that oould
do this work. The Department of agriculture laboratory had never
graded a sample of cotton seed during its existence and had no
equipment or supplies suitable for this purpose. Mr. Jones told
these men that he would contact the Governor and if he could obtain
money from the Contingent Fund to set up a grading laboratory, he
would be willing to undertake the work. After a telenhone conversation
with Governor Jefferies, however, he founS that funds would not be
available until the legislature aet and so advised this oil mill group.
We could not wait until the Legislature met in January, 1943, because
the 1942 seed crop would be lost.

Conditions went from bad to worse and the reason for Dr.
(Meloy’s trip to Columbia was to make a personal appeal to Mr. Jones.
(He (Meloy) had exhausted every effort in the meantime to establish
(a laboratory in South Carolina and conditions had changed from
(chaotic to desperate. The only facility the government had in this
(section for grading was in Atlanta, Georgia and the laboratory
(there was running about a month behind with samples. This delay
(was ruinous to farmers and ginners, for during that delay the fatty
(acid content would build up to such an extent that seed which would
(have graded basis or above were found, after four weeks, to be far
(below the basis, causing losses in sone instances of as much as
(fifteen dollars per ton.

Gentlemen, | might explain here that fatty acid is the
element which makes an oil product rancid and when cottonseed, as
well as butter, lard or other oil products begin to become rancid,
it increases, as you well know, from day to day. So farmers were
not only being delayed in getting a settlement for their seed but
were also taking an awful licking on the grade. Some ginners were
making settlement on the basis with farmers and weeks later when
they got their report on the grade of the seed and settlement from
the oil mill they were shocked and dismayed by the loss they had
to sustain.

( Dr. Meloy wanted an agency to finance and do the work of seed
(grading under his complete control and supervision. The government
(had approved a charge of $2.25 per sample graded (later raised to
(J2.75); this was to be paid by the oil mills and 25% of it was to

(be remitted to the government, the balance retained by the laboratory
(to pay the cost of operation. Ee insisted that the laboratory would
(have to be set up as a U. S. Government agency with the local agency
(merely the cooperating factor.

Mr. Jones again called Governor Jefferies, and the Governor
expressed great interest in doing everything possible for the benefit
of the farmers. The Governor said he had no objection to the depart-
ment cooperating with the Federal Government in the seed grading
program and was extremely sorry that the contingent fund at that time
had no money with which to start the work. The Governor requested
Mr. Jones to work out some practical plan, and if he should be
unable to do so to bring the matter to the attention of the Governor
again. It was not brought to the attention of the Governor again
because we worked out the plan as hereinafter outlined, and were not
forced to ask the Budget Commission to provide financial assistance.
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Mr. Jones then asked me if | could work out any plan that
would create an agency to cooperate with the government in this work.
I immediately began a study of the situation and found that a great
deal of money would have to be spent for equipment and supplies.
Chemists and laboratory assistants were not available and there was
no place outside of the Wade Hampton Office Building where such a

laboratory could be set up.

( A laboratory cannot be set up in just any building, for
(special plumbing and electric wiring must be installed as an
(integral part of the building equipment. Drain pipes must be of du-
CSM (rion instead of the conventional cast iron soil pipe and special
(electric wiring, non-flash switches and fuses must also be a part of
(the building equipment. | investigated the possibility of two
(suitable buildings in Columbia and found they were both in use and

(could not be obtained.

In my verbal report to Mr. Jones, | told him that the only
possibility of setting up a grading laboratory would be to use some
of the space of the agriculture department laboratory on the sixth
floor of the Wade Hampton Office Building. A survey shov/ad that
this would crowd the grading laboratory as well as the agriculture
department laboratory - a condition which is not only inconvenient
but somewhat hazardous - but due to the emergency that existed, |
thought it should be done to carry out this important government

program. | also reported to him that | had talked to the personnel
individually and in groups and that they were willing to undertake
this work on an overtime basis. | found that | could buy on credit

some equipment from the old Chas. W. Rice and Co. Laboratory which
had been closed and dismantled soon after the death of MT. Rice.
(The oil mills were so anxious for this laboratory that they offered

C3M (to lend some equipment and supplies from their private laboratories.
(they were also to pay the government approved fee of 42.25 per
sample, and as practical business men they could not understand why
the laboratory could not operate.

As you well know, gentlemen, a State Department cannot
collect money from oil mills or anyone else without a law authoriz-
ing it. And, they cannot disburse funds without a law aopropriating
it. So I reported to Mr. Jones that the only legal way that | knew
of to set up the laboratory would be as an individual private
enterprise for the sole purpose of cooperating with the government
to get this particular Job done. | told him that | would accept the
responsibility of doing this if I could get ?1000.00, and if he
would cooperate to the extent of allowing the laboratory on the
sixth floor of the Wade Hampton O ffice Building and allow the per-
sonnel of the Department of Agriculture to work overtime. Thi3 he
agreed to do with the distinct understanding that it was not to
interfere with the work of the Department of Agriculture in any way;
that the grading laboratory was to maintain a strict policy of
analyzing official government samples only and that it was to be
kept separate from the Department of Agriculture laboratory as far
as it was physically possible to do so. He also agreed to loan
the laboratory the 71000.00 that | said vzould be necessary to begin

operating.

He contacted the personnel of the Department of Agriculture 475
individually and in groups and explained to them what he knew of
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the vital War necessity of the program and the fact that he did not
know how long it would last. It was only for the purpose of doing
this government work, and when the government program ended the
operation of the grading laboratory would end. The laboratory was
starting with nothing. Equipment and supplies would have to be
goutght before they would receive any compensation for their cvcrtire
utres.

Having, this complete understanaing with Ur. Jones, and
having received his 0. K. to go ahead with this work, | bought and
had installed what equipment | could get from the old Chas. W. Rice
and Co. Laboratory.

I borrowed equipment and supplies from the Hartsville Oil
(Mill, Hartsville, S. C., Planters Cotton Oil Co., Augusta, Georgia,
GSM (and the Southern Cotton Oil Co., Columbia. Other purchases of
(immediate necessity were made and the seed grading laboratory began
Eéq function under a license issued by the government to Mr. R. M.
impson.

All of the equipment brought in by the grading laboratory
was labeled with a stencil, "Seed Grading Laboratory, Columbia,
S. C." The Department of Agriculture lad laboratory balances that
could have been borrowed for weighing samples, also typewriters that
could have been borrowed for making reports, but so strict was the
policy of keeping this operation separate from the Department of
Agriculture that the Seed Grading Laboratory bought its own balances
and typewriters, as well as the other equipment it used. The Seed
Grading Laboratory paid the gas bill during the seed grading season
for all users of gas in the Wade Hampton O ffice Building, including
the 3oard of Health Laboratory, because we could not get a separate
meter, and rather than have someone criticize the way the bill was
prorated, | thought it best for the seed gracing laboratory to may
the whole amount

We paid rent at the rate of $600 a year to the Sinking Fund
Commission for the space allowed us by the Department of Agriculture.
The personnel worked from 6 o’clock in the morning until late at
night, sometimes as late as 3 or 2 o’clock. They worked all day
Saturday and very often all day Sunday, yet funds in sufficient
amount to pay them any compensation for their overtime duties did
not accrue for several months.

As evidence of the fact that this seed grading was done on

on overtime basis and did not interfere with the work of the Depart-
ment of Agriculture Laboratory, | submit for your consideration the
fact that the Department of Agriculture laboratory analyzed 19,360
samples during the year 1945-46. During the year*1941-42 (the vyear
before the seed grading work began) the Department of Agriculture
laboratory analyzed 18,904 samples. This large volume of samples
could not have been analyzed if the personnel had not given the full
time required for their Department of Agriculture duties.

In closing, | desire to state that from the very beginning
of operation of the Seed Grading Laboratory, Mr. Jones mde it clear
taut ut no ciie ”as the work to interfere in any manner with that
of the Department of Agriculture. 1 can, and do, unhesitatingly say
that this procedure was strictly adhered to and | know of my own
knowledge that such was the case.
476
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The undertaking was a war emergency measure at the insistence
GSM (of the Federal Government. |Its operation ves for the benefit of
(farmers, gihners, oil mills and the war effort generally.

The work done resulted in the saving of many thousands of
dollars to theagricultural interest of this state, together with
facilitating the processing of cotton seed whose products were
essential to the war effort in every particular. It is also a fact
that until these seed were graded and tested it was a physical
impossibility for the oil mills to fix the prices thereon, as every
oil mill operator in this state will gladly testify.

I, personally, feel that those who gave of their time and
labors for this effort deserve commendation for the effort which they
put forth. At all times the enterprise was conducted on a strict
business basis and all receipts and expenditures accounted for to

the last penny.

It is, therefore, My conclusion, which I feel that I am at
liberty to state, that the work which the Seed Grading Laboratory
did was justified in every particular and that its results to the
farmers, ginners, and oil mills and to the Federal Government are
more than justified. "

The foregoing statement correctly sets forth the organization and
operation of the seed grading laboratory as organized by me. "Under
no circumstances could or would the laboratory have been established

with any form of state control.” | insisted that the responsible
licensed chemist be absolutely under the control and supervision
of the U. S. Department of Agriculture. | was in charge of the

seed grading work for the U. S. D. A. until July 31, 1946. During
all that time the work of the laboratory was absolutely satisfactory.

(signed) G. S. Meloy

This is to certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of
the statement presented to the Budget Commission, Oct. 2, 1946, by
Chovine Sprott, Secretary and Treasurer, Seed Grading Laboratory. It
is also true and correct copy of statement made by Dr. G. S. Meloy
in regard to the statement of Chovine Sprott with appropriate
paragraphs initialed by Dr. Meloy.

(signed) Sara 3. Shealy.

Senator Brown: Who is this ~r. Meloy:

Mr. Sprott: Dr. Meloy was the U. S. Government Representative in
charge of seed grading under the U. S. Department of Agriculture. He has
now retired and has been replaced by his able assistant, Mr. R. T.
Doughtie, Jr.

Mr. Brown: W:ill you please read the statement of Dr. Meloy again.

Mr. Sprott: "The foregoing statenent correctly sets forth the
organization and operation of the seed grading laboratory as organized **
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by me. Under no circumstances could or would the laboratory have been

establishec -.Ith any form of state control. | insisted that the res-
ponsible licensed chemist be absolutely under the control and supervision
of the U. S. Department of Agriculture. | was in charge of the seed

grading work for the U. 3. D. A. until July 31,1946. During all that
time the work of the laboratory was absolutely satisfactory."
(Signed) G. S. Meloy.

Mr. Brown: How much would it have cost the State to set up a seed
grading laboratory and operate it?

Mr. Sprott: A laboratory would not have been set up at all. Our
first thought was to set up a State Laboratory, but it developed, as
stated by Dr. Meloy, that the Federal Government would under no circum-

stances have established a State controlled laboratory, regardless of
any amount of money the State might put up.

Mr. Brown: And if this laboratory had not been set up, what would
have been the effect on the farmer, ginners, oil mills, and the people
generally?

Mr. Sprott: The situation was desperate. There were no facilities
closer than Atlanta for grading seed, the seed deteriorate very rapidly
in value and they would have lost millions.

Gov. Williams: Who owns and operates the laboratory in Atlanta?
Mr. Sprott: It is a private concern.

~ Mr. Brown: The only criticism is that the work was done in a State
Building and by the Dept. of Agriculture employees?

Mr. Sprott: That seems to be it - that the work was done in a State
building and by Dept. of Agriculture employees. But it was distinctly
understood that no State equipment or supplies were to be used and the
personnel would do the work on an overtime basis.

Mr. 3row: Did the State Dept. of Agriculture have any facilities
whereby they could have operated a seed grading and testing laboratory
at fees of £2.25 or £2.75, or whatever was charged?

Mr. Sprott: They had no authority to set it up and could not have

collected any fees or distributed any money. It ..ould not have been set up

Mr. Brovn: Then the Seed Grading Laboratory was set up by the Dept.
of Agriculture employees as a private enterprise, paid rental to the State,
bought or borrowed machinery and equipment and paid the state employees,
for the specific purpose of carrying on vital War work?

Mr. Sprott: It was set up by the Federal Government and operated
separately from the Dept. of Agriculture as a private concern. The
State Dept. Chemist, Mr. R. M. Simpson was licensed by the government
to be in charge of the laboratory.

_ Mr. Brown: Mr. Simpson was the chemist and all who did work under
him drew some pay;

Testimony of Mr. J. Roy Jones, Cormlssioner of Agriculture.
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by me. Under no circumstances could or would the laboratory have been
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ponsible licensed chemist be absolutely under the control and supervision
of the U. S. Department of Agriculture. | was in charge of the seed

grading work for the U. o. D. A. until July 31,1946. During all that
time the work of the laboratory was absolutely satisfactory.**
(Signed) G. S. Meloy.

_Mr* Brown: How much would it have cost the State to set up a seed
grading laboratory and operate it?

Mr. Sprott: A laboratory would not have been set up at all. Our
first thought was to set up a State Laboratory, but it developed, as
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any amount of money the State might put up.

Mr. Brown: And if this laboratory had not been set up, what would
have been the effect on the farmer, ginners, oil mills, and the people
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Mr. Brown: The only criticism is that the work was done in a State
Building and by the Dept. of Agriculture employees?

Mr. Sprott: That seems to be it - that the work was done in a State
building and by Dept. of Agriculture employees. But it was distinctly
understood that no State equipment or supplies were to be used and the
personnel would do the work on an overtime basis.

Mr* Brown: Did the state Dept. of Agriculture have any facilities
whereby they could have operated a seed grading and testing laboratory
at fees of 52.25 or )2.75, or whatever was charged?

Mr. Sprott: They had no authority to set it up and could not have

collected any fees or distributed any money. It .ould not have been set up.

Mr. Brown: Then the Seed Grading Laboratory was set up by the Dept.
of Agriculture employees as a private enterprise, paid rental to the State,
bought or borrowed machinery and equipment and paid the state employees,
for the specific purpose of carrying on vital War work?

Mr* Sprott: It was set up by the Federal Government and operated
separately from the Dept. of Agriculture as a private concern. The
State Dept. Chemist, Mr. R. M. Simpson was licensed by the government
to be in charge of the laboratory.

Mr. Brown: Mr. Simpson was the chemist and all who did work under
him drew some pay;

Testimony of Mr. J. Roy Jones, Commissioner of Agriculture.
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Statement - J. Roy Jones:

"In making a statement concerning the Seed Grading
Laboratory, it is my understanding that this committee is
desirous of knowing whether or not the Seed Grading Laboratory
was operated as a state project. Let me first state that the
history of the laboratory as furnished by Mr. Sprott is a
complete picture of how and why this work was done. Personally,
I am very proud of the fact that | had a part in this work.

All of us can recall the cry for fats and oils made by
the government, radio commentators and all newspapers in the
summer and fall of 1942, which cry is still prevalent today.
At that time, every man, woman and child in South Carolina was
lending their hand in every possible way to the war effort.
When the U. S. Government, through Dr. Meloy, approached me
about seed grading, my first and only thought was to get the
work done by any possible means. If the laboratory in my
department had had the facilities for doing this work, | would
have had no hesltance in appealing to the Governor, the
Legislature, the 3udget or Sinking Fund Commission, or any other
authority with a view of working out some plan whereby this
could be done. However, Dr. Meloy subsequently stated that he
could not make any agreement with the State of South Carolina
and it would have to be unaer complete federal control. He could
only license a chemist who owned or had control of the equipment.

The project was started at the inslstance and on
behalf of the Federal Government as an emergency war measure and
rather than being in the position of defending what | did, and
what wus subsequently accomplished by the Seed Grading Laboratory,
I want to state here and now that | have no apologies, but rather
have the satisfaction of feeling that in a time of stress my own
patriotism and all of my fellow workers was not "weighed in the

balance and found wanting." Were similar occasion to arise tomorrow,
whereby the government called on me to exercise all power in my _
command for the production of essential war materials, | would again

do all that | have done and feel a great pride in being able to help.
I, therefore say, gentlemen, that my following remarks are not made
in the defense of the workings of the Seed Grading Laboratory, for
it needs no defense but rather it is my purpose to answer the unfair
and untrue statements which were made and published during the
political campaign which has recently ended.

For almost four years the Seed Grading Laboratory, under
great stress of war-time conditions, performed a duty requested of
it by the Federal Government. Throughout this entire time that it's
business dealings were with the Federal Government, the oil mills
of this state, many business men, our farmers, ginners and others
had occasion from time to time to oome in contact with its work.
However, during the campaign the charge was made that the operation
of the laboratory was done with great secrecy; that two hundred and
fifty thousand dollars in fees had been collected with no proper
accounting for their disbursement; that the seed grading laboratory
was operated by the Department of Agriculture and that its work
was so intermingled with that of the Department that it was in
reality a state operated concern and as such all funds received and
expenses paid were in behalf of the state of South Carolina. As
stated, for four years not a word of criticism had been directed
against its operations but during the recent political campaign
certain Individuals and interests sought to make of it a political
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football and scattered over the state false and unwarranted state-
ments to such an extent that the laboratory in reality became a
political issue.

With your permission it is now my purpose to lay before
you answers to those charges and statements, not one of which had

the least semblance of truth.

Great stress was laid that the operation of the laboratory
was done in secrecy and that a veil of mystery surrounded its
operations. | answer this by stating, and the facts will bear me out,
that every oil mill man, ginner, many farmers and business men had
daily dealings with the laboratory. Thousands of packages passed
through the hands of every known public delivery service addressed
to the Seed Grading Laboratory; reports were published on prices of
graded seed tested by the laboratory; a great many people were working
all hours of the night doing this Job; reports and correspondence
were scattered from one end of the state to the other, and in portions
of Georgia and North Carolina, which the laboratory served. Last,
and by no means least, a state-wide convention was held for those
interested in the service with much publicity given to its meeting.
At this convention the Federal Supervisor of the program of
cottonseed grading was present and discussed seed grading in detail
Feeling that the service was of such a nature that it deserved all
possible publicity, an exhibit of its work was placed in the 1945
fair exhibits at Columbia, Greenwood and Charleston, at which time
thousands upon thousands of people of our state were told of its
program and urged to assist in this war effort. Such facts | feel
are conclusive proof that there was no element of secrecy to the
operation of the Laboratory.

Secondly, it was charged that the disbursement of the
funds derived from the fees received for this work were irregular, and
malicious and slanderous inferences were made that someone was
unlawfully profiting from the operation of the laboratory. As Mr.
Sprott’s statement set forth, the laboratory was set up separate
and distinct from anything connected with the operation of the
Department of agriculture. Its equipment, chemicals, and all
accessories were purchased with funds of individuals. Not one penny,
directly or indirectly, of the state of South Carolina was used in
connection therewith. The personnel were largely employees of the
state who were highly trained specialists, a group distinct unto
themselves in having the qualifications to do this wcrk. Many of
them worked many times from six o’clock in the morning until nine
(the time they report for duty for the state’s work), and then from
five in the afternoon until as late as two the following morning,
including practically every Saturday afternoon and night and all day
Sunday, in order that the work might be properly done. And here let
me emphasize the fact that no where in the state of South Carolina
was the Federal Government able to find a place where this work
could be done. The equipment was purchased anywhere that it could
be found and even then much had to be borrowed from the various oil
mills throughout the state. | presume that you are aware of the
fact that cotton seed are a perishable product. |If kept for undue
length of time they heat and the product thereafter derived from the
seed are inferior in quality and in many instances incapable of being
properly processed.

When we were called upon to do this work for the Federal *O
Government, who had taken over the processing cottonseed, it simply
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meant that if this work could not be performed that the farmer could
not even sell his cottonseed for their true value for the reason
that they could not be graded. 3very oil mill man in this state

will verify this statement. And, if we had been unable to nerform
this service there is not a shadow of a doubt but that thousands

upon thousands of tons of cottonseed would have gone to waste.
Hundreds of thousands of gallons of cottonseed oil would not have
been available for the war effort; hundreds of thousands of tons of
meal and cottonseed hulls would not have been available for the
feeding of livestock, fertilizer, etc. I, therefore, say that the
approximate sixty people who gave of their time and labor and talent
did a worthy job, patriotically performed, and deserving of every
penny which they received as compensation for their efforts. The
records show, and the audit so reveals, that every one of them were
paid by check, all fees due the U. S. Government were paid by check;
all withholding taxes duly paid and accounted for and an accurate
record kept of every penny received and paid out. I, therefore

make the statement that insofar as the charges that there was
improper disbursement of funds used in connection with the Seed
Grading Laboratory is false and without foundation of fact. And, there
was no secrecy connected with this. The fact that a number of
individuals actuated solely by political motives demanded from time to
time itemized audits of the books and requested other information for
purely political motives and were not given such does not alter the
situation. However, as the campaign progressed and more and more
misleading statements were circulated and published, Mr. Sprott thought
it to be to the best interest of all concerned to give all the request-
ed information, and even went so far as to furnish the press an
itemized statement of all receipts and disbursements. As the opera-
tion of the laboratory was not a public concern, I do not feel that
Mr. Sprott would have been wrong had he refused to give out this
information any more so than if a demand had been made of me,
personally, for the receipts and expenditures in the operation of my
farm or in any other private enterprise which a state official or
employee might be engaged in. The mere fact that one is a state
official or a state employee, in my opinion, does not debar him from
any other activities provided such are not engaged in for the time which
he has sold his services to the State. The same applies to the
request of the State to have its auditors go over the books of the
laboratory. The only thing in which the State of South Carolina was
concerned was the rent which it received from the laboratory, but,
as stated, the attempt to make a political foot ball out of the Seed
grading Laboratory ana to cast aspersions upon all of those who so
faithfully served it during the stress of war, I personally am glad
that the State auditors were given access to the books ana have
presented to you full and complete operations of the laboratory,

for such report is proof conclusive that it was not a state operated
project; that the state of South Carolina incurred no obligation

in any manner by reason of its operation but that it did allow space
to be used for its work, well knowing that such work was a war
emergency measure. | have no doubt but that bad the occasion
demanded, proper authorities would have gladly given space in the
State House or any other public building if the U. £. Government had
so requested for other purposes similar to that for which the
laboratory was established.

It almost became a slogan in the last political campaign
of, ",there has the money gone"”, as Commissioner of Agriculture |
have no official authority to answer that question, however, the
audit prepared by your state auditor does answer it and answers it
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clearly and conclusively that the money had sone to those who did

the work. As just plain Roy Jones | do tell you that every penny

of that money was honestly handled as your state audit shows; that

it was expended to promote a most worthy cause and that it was paid
to the people who gave up most of their nersonal time to do the work
so that the men of our Armed Forces could have fats and oils, so
essential to th* p-osscation of the war. Those individuals did that
which the State of South Carolina had no means to do, a Job for which
the Seed Gradin’ Laboratory should have been praised, and not called
upon to explain the whys and wherefores of the patriotic effort which
its employees performed.

Mov/ as to the question of whether or not the state

contributed to the cost of operatin': the seed grading laboratory,

the audit of your state auditor shows that the Seed Grading Laboratory
bought all of its equipment it used, all of the chemicals it used,

all accessories, paid more than its share of the gas bill, paid the
state rent, paid its employees based on the type of worx and amount
of hours given to such work; paid all taxes for all funds received,
paid the federal government its required fees, protected the employees
while they worked, protected the government for whom the work was done
and not in a single, solitary instance did the state of South Carolina
directly or Indirectly, have any connection with the grading work.

That such work at no time interfered with toe normal
duties performed by the Department of agriculture is shown by the
increased services which the department was called upon to do during
the entire period in which this laboratory has operated. Four
sessions of the legislature have convened and adjourned and not one
word of complaint has been raised against the Department for the
services requested of it. During this same time the finances of the
Department of Agriculture have increased yearly, reaching an all
time high record in 1945. These are the records of the Department
of agriculture, they speak for themselves and they cannot be proven
otherwise. I, therefore, feel, gentlemen, that this clearly disposes
of this much publicized statement.

Now to the last question about which so much was chargedt
with no proof whatsoever offered to substantiate it, that is, "Was
the work of the Seed Grading Laboratory a State function?” As
Commissioner of Agriculture | unhesitatingly answer, ”"No, it was not”.

I realized this when | called upon the Governor of
South Carolina asking if it would be possible to get help to
establish this laboratory from the Contingent Fund. | am sure that
he knew this when he stated to me that the Contingent Fund could not
at that time provide help for the project of this nature and stated to
me that he hoped some plan could be worked out in a practical way that
would help the farmer out in this emergency. | know, and all of you
know, that the state cannot perform any service on a fee basis unless
there be a specific law to cover this service and had such been the
case the work would have been mandatory. Neither do | believe that
if the legislature had been called upon to make this a compulsory
service that it could, or would, have been able to do it. After all,
it was an emergency war measure to fill a war need. Its duration wa3
unknown and the scope of its work undetermined. Moreover it was a
Federal matter to be handled by the Federal Government as it saw fit,
and | cannot conceive of any theory upon which | could have asked the

state to do this work.
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Dr. Meloy, the Federal representative, made it quite
plain that where he had set up seed grading laboratories in other
states, it was not a state function, as the Federal Government
would, at all times, exercise control and supervision of its work and
that such laboratory, to operate properly would have to be definitely
divorced from any political subdivision of the state. Dr. Meloy
further stated ttat the time that he would not authorize, n<rcould he
sign,a cooperative agreement with the state, but that he would
recognize and license a cliemist and sign an individual agreement with
him so that at all times the equipment and functions of the
laboratory would be subject to federal control.

He designated MT. R. M. Simpson, a specialist in
analyzing oils, as the government licensed chemist. It therefore
follows that when the Federal Government made as one of its provisions
that the laboratory be not operated as a function of the state; that
the set-up was certainly, in the eyes of the Federal Government, not
connected with the Department of Agriculture, a subdivision of the
state of south Carolina.

Hot only this, gentlemen, you know, as well as I, that
where the state of South Carolina is concerned every penny received and
every penny expended has to be appropriated by the state legislature
and that vouchers must go to the Comptroller General for every item
purchased, or for any expenses incurred. State vouchers are incident
to state funds. Then too, the fact that rent was paid for the space
was a recognition that the function of the laboratory was independent.
Likewise, those who did this work were paid on the basis of overtime
and | have yet to hear of any State agency paying its salaried based
employees for overtime.

Speaking of overtime, allow me to make one observation
at this point. Several of the employees of the Seed Grading Labora-
tory were in no manner connected with the state of South Carolina and
drew their entire salary from the grading laboratory. | know it to
be a fact that many times when their work was slack they assisted
state employees with such work as they were doing. The extra work
furnished by these outside employees was given freely by them and no
compensation whatsoever did they receive from the State.

In preparing a chemical analysis it is not possible,
like bookkeeping or other routine work, to stop on the minute and
there may have been from time to time a possible overlapping of work.
I am not prepared to state to you that there mayhave been times
when state e Iployees on state time did perform some duties connected
with the laboratory, but I know, however, at no time did the work
performed by them for the State of South Carolina suffer, and,
considering the war emergency effort involved, | do not believe that
there is a man or woman In the state who would not have been willing
for the state to contribute its part in thus lending its effort to
win the war. | know of many state officials whopatriotically went
over tiie entire length and breadth of this state making speeches on
behalf of the sale of bonds and doing other patriotic duties on what
might be termed state’s time. | do not feel that they are subject
to criticism and | commend them. | was one of them, and | would do
the same thing again. When our country was engaged in a life and
death struggle for its existence, the niceties of technicalities
should, and are, shoved into discard, but as stated, | know that at
no time did the State of South Carolina suffer thereby. During the
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entire war period the total state laboratory analysis increased, with
the total for 1945-46 being grater than the year before the seed
grading work began. This was done in the face of manyshortages,
with the fact that several ofour key chemists were atthat time in
the service of our country. Not one single time did the work lag or
get behind ark] not one single citizen complained to meby reason of
our laboratory not performing promptly and efficiently the full
service for which it was established.

This is what lawyers would call "prima facie evidence"
that the seed grading laboratory did not interfere with the regular

state work.

Personally, I am proud of the record that your Department
of Agriculture accomplished during the war years and | am equally
proud that the seed grading laboratory was organized, set up and
functioned in an efficient and capable manner, and | commend the work
and labor of all of those who had a part in making its contribution
to the war effort that cannot be measured in dollars and cents.
Fortunately, the function of the two laboratories did not conflict
and it was only the willingness of the members of the Department which
made this possible, but, | say again, that had it been necessary to
encroach upon some of the state’s time to help win the war, I am sure
that | would have rendered my decision in favor of the war effort
with full confidence that the patriotic citizens would have backed

me up one hundred oercent.

In conclusion, | might state that none of us knew how
lonr this program would last. |, personally, thought one or maybe
two seasons. At first | was very active in the administration because
I had organized the laboratory and it was only natural that those
interested wrote to me or held their conferences with me. | soon saw
this would bring aoout an embarrassing situation as my mail and
conferences always carried the background of my official capacity as
Commissioner of Agriculture.

| rectified this as time went along and passes this work
on to MT. Sprott. And, I want to pay high respect to him for the fine
job he has done. He has conducted the Seed Grading Laboratory in an
admirable manner and at the same time carried out my orders
that the functions of the State Department of Agriculture be
kept entirely separate from the Seed Grading Laboratory.

| apologize to you, Gentlemen, for presenting such
a lengthy statement, but I feel that in view of the fact that
these unwarranted charges against the laboratory were circulated
throughout the length and breadth of this state, that it was my
duty to give you the facts exactly as they are. "

Idr. Tuten: |Is the work of the Laboratory as heavy now as it has
been in the past, and is it having to be continued over there now?

Mr. Jones: Yes, it will have to be continued if you serve the farmers
of the State lise you should. It would have to continue for the balance

of this season to take care of the present crop. Mr. Doughtie can testi-
fy on that matter.

Testimony of Mr. R. T. Doughtie, Jr., Supervisor of Cottonseed
Grading for the U. 3. Department of Agriculture:
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Mr* Doughtie: Gentleman, | have not prepared a statement. This is
my first experience in a hearing of this kind, but I think | can answer
any questions you might wish to ask.

Mr. Brown: What we want is any light we can get on the subject about
which we are now making inquiry. How the seed grading laboratory came to
be set up; under whose direction it was set up; why the necessity for it;
its purpose; and what would have been the condition if it had not been

set up.

Mr. Doughtie: The laboratory was set up in 1942 at the request of
the Federal Government to provide facilities for grading cottonseed.
Federal officials and interested cotton seed oil men negotiated with
Mr. Jones and Mr. Sprott in establishing the laboratory as a private
enterprise cooperating with the war food administration. The Federal
Government could not deal with a State agency. |If the laboratory had
not been established the entire seed grading program of the Commodity
Credit Corporation in this State would have been jeopardized. There were
two other states in 1942 that asked for a laboratory, but were told a
Federal Laboratory would notbe approved as a State functioning laboratory,

question: What connection do you have with the Laboratory?

Mr. Doughtie: My job is primarily to see that the chemist is kept
on the straight and narrow path in analyzing the seed, to see that
equipment purchased is aoproved and the work is kept up to standard. The
set-up was such that | had to make trips to examine the equipment, make
requisition for needs for equipment and to see if the seed grading was

up to standard.
Mr. Brown: And this was done?

Mr. Doughtie: Yes. The Federal Government could not approve a
laboratory operated by the State of South Carolina, but they approved
state chemist, R. M. Simpson to supervise the work. He had been licensed
by the government as a chemist prior to that time, vfcen he was with the
Chas. w. Rice Laboratory. The Federal Government did not establish a
precedent by licensing a state employee to work under government super-
vision. The regulation is that the chemist be a commissioned chemist
or employee of a laboratory doing general commercial work. The Govern-
ment makes no regulation for a State Laboratory.

Mr. Brown; The Federal Government would not approve a State
Laboratory but did approve State chemist, Mr. Simpson. Who vould the
Government contaot if anything went wrong?

Mr. Doughtie: The Government does not have to contact anyone connect-
ed with the State. It would contact our licensed chemist who is respon-

sible for the laboratory.

Mr. Tuten: Has the work of the laboratory come up to Govt, standards,
and has it been beneficial to the farmers?

Mr* Doughtie: Yes, the nearest Government approved laboratory *s in
Atlanta, Ga. There ves one - Thornes C. Law, in Macon, one in Savannah
and one in Wilmington, N. C. Tte problem was that it was most difficult
getting the samples any place except Atlanta. 3avaaaah did not haveenough
equipment to do the work. The laboratory in Atlanta was behind with the

samples.

4M
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Mr. Srown: If the old Chas. W. Rice Laboratory had been in operation
could they have done the work?

Mr. Doughtie: Yes, a commercial establishment could have done the
Federal work. The State already had employees under the Federal Govern-
ment who were familiar with the work, and fifty percent, if not more, of
the Federal graders receive part of their pay from the states in which
they are employed, and also receive government pay.

Mr. Tuten: Mr. Jones, | would like to ask the question as to
whether or not the government wants this work continued.

Mr. Jones: Yes, they ask that the work be continued the balance of
the season. The old crop of seed is still moving.

Mr. Doughtie: | hope nothing will be done to inactivate the
laboratory at least until next July or August. Arrangements are being
made whereby another commercial laboratory can be established, but it
will be impossible to do it until next year, and the present crop should
be handled by the existing laboratory.

Mr. Brown: And this would take care of the present crop? The
Budget Commission must report to the legislature and we want to know
whether to request permission to continue the laboratory until next

August.

Mr. Tuten: We would like to put in the record to the General Assem-
bly whether or not it would be helpful to the farmers to continue the
Laboratory until next August.

Mr. Doughtie: Without the laboratory the farmers would be delayed
in getting their cottonseed to the market. The damage in value would
be relatively high, for during delay the fatty acid content builds up
and the seed begin to deteriorate.

Mr. Brown: And once the fatty acid content begins to go up the
farmers’ income begins to go down.

Mr. Doughtie: The sooner it is graded the better the prices.

Statement of Mr. E. H. Lawton, President and Treasurer of Hartsville
Oil Mill:

Mr. Lawton: "Mr. C. C. Smith, in charge of the 1942 Cottonseed
program processor Contract for Commodity Credit Corporation, designated
South Carolina as one among other areas in which cottonseed should be
purchased on the basis of United States standard grades.

The then existing seed gradin'- laboratories were unable to handle
the larre volume of additional vork thrown on them by this contract.
President Hughes of the South Carolina Cottonseed Crushers’ Asso-
ciation appointed a committee, of which | was a member, to cooperate
with Dr. G. S. Meloy, in charge of seed grading for the Department
of Agriculture, in arrangin’ immediately Tor additional laboratory
facilities for grading of cottonseed. This committee, after con-
tacting Law & Company and other commercial laboratories and finding
that they were unable to expand their facilities sufficiently to
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handle this additional business, contacted Commissioner Soy Jones
and begged him to open a seed grading laboratory. We told him
that it was necessary that this be done at once in order to promote
the orderly marketing of cottonseed under Processor Contract.
Commissioner Jones kindly consented to open such a laboratory,
provided suitable apparatus and personnel could be obtained.” My
company loaned him a seed-drying oven and sone other apparatus, and
he was able to borrow additional apparatus from other companies.
The laboratory was opened and approved by the Department of Agri-
culture, and since that time has analyzed cottonseed in an accurate
and satisfactory manner. Our companies have paid the South Caro-
lina Seed Grading Laboratory the regular commercial fee for all
samples analyzed for us by them. We had nothin® to do with the
legal or financial setup of this laboratory and neither asked for
nor received any compensation for apparatus loaned to them.Appara-
tus has since been returned to us.

We are deeply grateful to Commissioner Jones for opening and
operating this laboratory and feel that he performed a necessary ser-
vice for the farmers and oil mills of the State in so doing.*

Governor Williams: Mr. Lawton, did the laboratory, in your opinion,
render a service to the State?

Mr. Lawton: It definitely did render a service to the State. Our
samples were thirty days behind and we were in a mess. | want to say
that a distinct service was rendered to the State, the farmers, the
businesr. men, and also to the War effort.

Testimony of Ur. D. M. Lipscomb, Secretary S. C. Cottonseed
Crushers Association:

Mr. Lipscomb: | have not prepared a statement, but | have some
records | would like to present. | have here a telegram from Mr. C. C.
Smith, in charge of the 1942 Cottonseed Program -

j-°ily
South Carolina Cottonseed Crushers Association
609 Palmetto 3uilding
Columbia, S. C.
1942 Sep 5 PM 3 25
}A89

V3251 42 Govt-Washin-ten DC 5 313P

D. M. Lipscomb, Secretary
South Carolina Cottonseed Crushers Association 609

Palmetto Bldg. Columbia SoCar—

IN VIEW OF LARGE TOTS AND IN ORDER TO PROCEED IN DEMOCRATIC WAY ALL
UPLAND COTTONSEED IN SOUTH CAROLINA UNDER PROCESSORS CONTRACT SHALL
BE PURCHASED BASIS UNITED STATES STANDARD GRADE. MBLOY IN COLUMBIA
TUESDAY AND WILL MAZE SUGGESTIONS ON METHODS UNTIL TULL EQUIPMENT

AVAILABLE.

C. C. Smith
4ANG6
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Mr. Lipscomb: | also present a letter from Dr. Meloy about the
situation:

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTORB
Agricultural Marketing Aim.
Washington, D. C.

September 15,1942

Mr. D. M. Lipscomb, Sec’y.

South Carolina Cottonseed Crushers Assn.
609 Palmetto Building

Columbia, S. C.

Dear Mr. Lipscomb:

| had quite a talk v/ith Mr. Jones but | am not very sanguine
of being able to work out the program v.ith him. However, |

am to meet v.ith the folks in Columbia on Thursday, the 17th.
In the meantime , | have just received the following telegram

from Mr. Law:

"Under circumstances impossible for me to organize South
Carolina situation my full time required here stop suggest
if possible obtain leave of absence for Simpson and secure
missing equipment from Southern Laboratories stop investi-
gation indicates unsatisfactory to others to handle work

at company laboratories stop would oermit Simpson operate
under our name but not interested in Kabenicht proposition.™

It does seen to me that Mr. Law’s suggestion of securing a
furlough or leave of absence without pay for Mr. Simpson,
combined with the offer of the various mill laboratories to
loan missing equipment, is the best prospect.

Mr. Simpson could operate the laboratory as his own or, as
Mr. Law suggests, operate the laboratory for Law and Company.

Very truly yours,
(Signed) G. S. Meloy, in Charle

Grading & Marketing Cottonseed X Products
Cotton Branch.

COPY

Ur. Lipscomb: | contacted Mr. Jones about Mr. Simoson getting a
leave of absence. Mr. Jones asked Mr. Slmoson about it, but Mr. Simpson
would not agree to leave the employ of the State. | asked Dr. Meloy about

getting Mr. Jones to set up a laboratory. Most of our work in South
Carolina was going to Atlanta. .< had fatten to the point where we Just
could not get the work done. . 'eloy had an underc* ng with 1 e
Jones that if the laboratory was set up, Mr. Simpson would be under the
V. S. Department of Agriculture and that Mr. Jones would have nothing

to do with the work of the laboratory.
AN

r*
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Governor Williams: Mr. Lipscomb, do you think a service was
rendered the State?

MT. Lipscomb; It distinctly was.

Mr* Doughtie: | would like to say that the cooperation given us
since the Laboratory was set up has been as good, if not better, than
that received in any other section.

Governor Williams Statement to the Press:

"We made a thorough investigation and every cent was accounted
for. It went to the State employees who did the work. It is not
up to us to say whether the department had a right to operate the
laboratory as a private agency, or whether the state employees had a
right to do overtime work. This is a matter for the Legislature to
decide and not the Budget Commission. 'Ve are aakll full report to
the Legislature vhen it convenes in January.™>

Senator Brown’s Statement to the Press:

"The Budget Commission is the Governor’s advisory council and has
to do almost solely with fiscal affairs and appropriations for operating
the State Government. We have no right uo say whether the Department
of Agriculture employees should or 3hould not engage in enterprises of
this sort. AIl we can say is that everything not only should be right,
but should look right.”

"Copies of audit report of the Seed Grading Laboratory prepared by
State Auditor J. K. Smith, were presented to the Press* "

£ 4S8
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